
1 

AGENDA 

Mason Transit Authority Board 
Regular Meeting 

March 19, 2019, 4:00 p.m. 
Mason Transit Authority 

to be held at the following location: 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 

OPENING PROTOCOL 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA – ACTION 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

CONSENT AGENDA – ACTION 

1. Pg. 03: Approval of Minutes: Approval of the minutes of the February 19, 2019
MTA regular Board meeting 

2. Pg. 06: Financial Reports:  December, 2018 & February 2019
3. Pg. 16: Check Approval: February 15 –March 13, 2019

REGULAR AGENDA 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
1. Pg. 26:  Operations and Maintenance Committee Recommendation –

ACTIONABLE 

NEW BUSINESS: 
1. Pg. 27: IT Wireless Policy (POL-701) – Resolution No. 2019-03 – ACTIONABLE 
2. Pg. 33: IT Acceptable Use Policy (POL-702) – Resolution No. 2019-04 –

ACTIONABLE 
3. Pg. 45: IT Remote Access Policy (POL-704) – Resolution No. 2019-05 –

ACTIONABLE 
4. Pg. 50: Scarsella Contract for Pear Orchard Park & Ride – Resolution No. 2019-06

– ACTIONABLE 
5. Pg. 68: CHG Contract for Roof Replacement Bldgs 3 & 4 –

Resolution No. 2019-07 – ACTIONABLE 
6. Pg. 91: Van Replacement for Vanpool Program – ACTIONABLE 

INFORMATIONAL PRESENTATION 
1. Pg. 93 Fares

INFORMATIONAL UPDATES 
1. Pg. 101: Park and Ride Update
2. Pg. 102: Management Reports

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 1



2 

COMMENTS BY BOARD 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

ADJOURNMENT 

UPCOMING MEETING: 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

April 16, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. 
Port of Allyn 
18560 E SR 3 

Allyn 

All participants are welcome. The meeting locations are ADA accessible. If you anticipate needing any type 
of accommodation or have questions about the physical access provided, please call 360-426-9434 in 
advance. We will make every effort to meet accommodation requests. 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 2



1 

 

               

Mason Transit Authority 
Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting  
February 19, 2019 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 
Shelton 
 
 
OPENING PROTOCOL 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 4:00 p.m.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Present: Randy Neatherlin, Chair; Wes Martin, 
Vice Chair; John Campbell, Kevin Dorcy, Deb Petersen, Don Pogreba, Kevin Shutty, 
Sandy Tarzwell and Sharon Trask. Quorum met.  
 
Authority Voting Board Members Not Present: [None]  
 
Authority Non-voting Board Member Present: Bobby Joe Murray, Business 
Representative, IAM and AW, District Lodge 160. 
 
Citizen Advisor to the Board Present: John Piety 
 
Others Present:  Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board; Danette Brannin, General Manager; 
Rob Johnson, Legal Counsel; Mike Ringgenberg, Operations Manager; Josh Jacobs, System 
Administrator; Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facilities Manager and Grace Martin.  
 

ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 
 
Moved that the agenda for the February 19, 2019 Mason Transit Authority (MTA) regular board 
meeting be approved. Shutty/Martin. Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Moved to approve Consent Agenda items 1 – 3, as follows: 
 

1. Moved to approve the draft minutes of the MTA Board regular meeting of January 15, 
2019. 

 
2. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the financial reports for the 

period of January 2019 as presented. 
 
3. Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve the payments of January 11, 

2019 through February 14, 2019 financial obligations on checks #32278 through 
#32384, as presented for a total of $1,007,968.74. 

 
Campbell/Shutty. Motion carried. 
 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 3



2 

 

               

 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS [None] 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
REQUEST FOR LETTER OF SUPPORT – The Board Chair had invited Board member Shutty to 
speak to the Board regarding a request for letter of support. Board member Shutty indicated 
that Mason Transit Authority will soon be a neighbor to the area and that it would be nice for 
Mason County to receive a letter of support from MTA relating to a new Belfair sewer that would 
be located on the upper plateau and was limited in scope. The cost is estimated to be 
$11,000,000 and is currently in the legislative pipeline. The Board Chair then asked the Board if 
any of the Board members had any objections with Ms. Brannin, as General Manager of MTA, to 
provide a letter of support and move it forward. There were no objections stated. Moved that 
the Mason Transit Authority Board give its endorsement of the County’s Belfair sewer extension 
and that Danette Brannin is authorized to sign a letter of support in connection with the sewer 
project. Campbell/Tarzwell. Motion carried unanimously. Following the carried motion, 
Board member Shutty thanked the Board for its consideration and support. 
 

1. Establish 2019 Authority Board Committees – Danette Brannin, General Manager, 
spoke of her one-on-one meetings that she had with each of the Board member in early 
January and that one of the topics covered was asking each Board member what 
Authority Board committee they would be interested in serving on. Those that are listed 
on the agenda page represent the committees that each of the Board members 
expressed interest in serving. The Board Chair asked if any of the Board members had 
comments or wished to make any changes. Since none were requested or made, the 
Chair appointed the Board members as set forth on the agenda page. Moved that the 
Mason Transit Authority Board approve the Board members to serve on the Authority 
Board Committees as set forth in the agenda page. Shutty/Pogreba. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

2. Approval of Technology Upgrade Expenditures – Ms. Brannin shared with the 
Board that the technology had been cobbled together over the years and that MTA’s new 
System Administrator, Josh Jacobs, had performed an analysis of the state of the current 
equipment, together with future technology needs and asked that he apprise the Board 
of his findings. Mr. Jacobs shared that many of the stationary computers and laptops 
were outdated and that many are in need of operating system upgrades. He pointed out 
that utilizing such equipment and operating systems puts the agency at risk from a 
security standpoint and recovering from a system failure. He also described other 
benefits to upgrading. Board member Martin inquired as to whether leasing or other 
options had been considered, at which Mr. Jacobs responded that his research found the 
other options to be more expensive. Board member Martin asked how long is the 
anticipated life of the equipment to be. Mr. Jacobs indicated 3-7 years, depending on the 
equipment. Board member Martin suggested that there be an additional line item in 
future budgets to plan for additional IT replacement/expansion expenditure given the 
anticipated life of the equipment.   Moved that the Mason Transit Authority Board 
approve the expense of $73,013.24 to be paid from technology grant#GCB2615 
Project B. Tarzwell/Martin. Motion carried. 

 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 4



3 

 

               

INFORMATIONAL UPDATES – Ms. Brannin briefly described to the Board additional 
information relating to the park and ride projects. Board member Shutty asked if the park and 
ride timeline was still about the same. Ms. Brannin indicated that it was anticipated to be the 
same.  
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Ms. Brannin indicated that focus has been on the service 
review and small changes are being made to provide better connection times to benefit riders, 
such as those that ride ferries and shifts of employees of the Puget Sound Naval Shipyard, 
among others. She said that the review process will be incorporating input from drivers and Ops 
staff. Then Kathy Geist, MTA’s Outreach-Transit Planner will be reaching out to current riders. 
 
Ms. Brannin thanked the Operations Team and Maintenance Team for their outstanding service 
during the snow storm. She reported service was curtailed for three days for safety concerns. She 
also commended the City and County Public Works Departments for their responsiveness during 
the storm and getting roads plowed as quickly as possible. 
 
COMMENTS BY BOARD MEMBERS –  Board member Campbell stated the meeting was 
very efficient. Board member Tarzwell gave kudos to the MTA staff during the snow event. 
Board member Martin shared that the snowstorm event brought to light how important 
MTA’s mission is to providing transportation for those that rely on Mason Transit Authority. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – None. 
 
Moved that the meeting be adjourned.  

ADJOURNED 4:34 p.m. 
 
UPCOMING MEETINGS 

 
 
 

Mason Transit Authority 
Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, March 19, 2018 at 4:00 p.m. 
Transit-Community Center 
601 West Franklin Street 

Shelton 
 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 5



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 6



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 7



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 8



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 9



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 10



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 11



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 12



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 13



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 14



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 15



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 16



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 17



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 18



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 19



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 20



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 21



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 22



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 23



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 24



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 25



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Unfinished Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    Operations and Maintenance Committee Recommendation 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 19, 2019 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
The Operations and Maintenance Committee as appointed by the Board at the 
February 19, 2019 regular Board meeting met on March 1, 2019 to discuss the Belfair 
facility and the current state of the Johns Prairie facility.  The committee consists of 
Randy Neatherlin, Kevin Dorcy and Don Pogreba. 
 
In light of the cost to add 1,500 sq. ft. to the Belfair facility, the Committee is 
recommending reverting back to the original building design that did not include space 
for potential leasing or future use by MTA. The cost of the project has increased since 
the application and budget were submitted for a grant five years ago. The building will 
still support future growth for MTA. Along with the added cost to construct, the building 
would require more maintenance which would be hard to cover with current MTA 
resources. 
 
The Committee also discussed the Johns Prairie facility. The building is aging and the 
committee discussed whether there is a need to replace the building or do repairs and 
upgrades to the existing building. Staff will put out a request for quotes to have the 
building assessed in the third quarter.  
 
 
Summary: Approve the Operations and Maintenance Committee 
recommendation to remove the additional square footage to the Belfair 
facility. 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
The Report of the recommendations of Operations and Maintenance Committee 
constitutes a motion for approval of the Committee’s recommendation to remove the 
additional square footing.  No second is required. 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 26



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 1 – Actionable 
Subject:    Information Technology Wireless Policy (POL-701) 
Prepared by:  Josh Jacobs, System Administrator 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 19, 2019 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
MTA’s information technology infrastructure has been and is currently undergoing a 
number of upgrades and improvements, with more anticipated to be made in the 
coming year. The purpose of the amended IT Wireless Policy is to update the previously 
established and defined terms, conditions and rules regarding the use of MTA’s wireless 
network (WiFi) infrastructure by employees and the public. 
 
 
Legal Counsel and two members of the Board have reviewed and approved this form of 
the policy. 
 
 
Summary:  Amend existing IT Wireless Policy (POL-701). 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-03 and the 
attached IT Wireless Policy (POL-701).  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 27



 

 

Title: Information Technology Wireless Policy 
Number: 701 
Effective: January 1, 2015, Revised March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Brian Jones, IT Support Technician 
Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-36; 
 Resolution No. 2019-XX 

 

See Also:  FRM-701 Wireless Network Service Agreement/Terms of Use 
Page 1 of 2 

 
POL-701 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY WIRELESS NETWORK 

This policy establishes and defines the terms, conditions, and rules regarding use 
of Mason Transit Authority’s (MTA) wireless network (WiFi) by employees and the 
public. 

1. Types of WiFi Networks 
 

The Information Technology (IT) Team will design a wireless network infrastructure 
suitable to meet MTA’s business needs. The WiFi infrastructure may include any of 
the three types of subnetworks: Closed to the public, open to the public, and 
special purpose. 
 

2. Closed WiFi Networks 
 

Closed to the public WiFi networks are intended for business uses and 
applications, and only accessible by MTA employees for business purposes. Only 
devices approved by the Systems AdministratorFinance/IT Manager are permitted 
on closed WiFi networks. While connected to a closed WiFi network, all MTA 
policies, including the Information Technology Acceptable Use policy, is in effect. 
 

3. Special Purpose WiFi Networks 
 

Special purpose WiFi networks are networks established for a special purpose, 
such as testing functionality or for special events. Special purpose WiFi networks 
are limited to activities directly related to their special purpose and restricted by 
all applicable policies, including the Information Technology Acceptable Use policy. 
 

4. Public WiFi Networks 
 

Public WiFi networks are open to the public for internet access using MTA’s IT 
equipment and internet access. Members of the public accessing MTA’s public 
WiFi will may be required to consent to MTA’s terms and conditions of use. Public 
users connect to the public WiFi with their own devices and at their own risk. MTA 
reserves the right to restrict access to individuals for violations of the terms and 

Formatted: Not Highlight

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 28



 

 

Title: Information Technology Wireless Policy 
Number: 701 
Effective: January 1, 2015, Revised March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Brian Jones, IT Support Technician 
Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-36; 
 Resolution No. 2019-XX 

 

See Also:  FRM-701 Wireless Network Service Agreement/Terms of Use 
Page 2 of 2 

conditions of use without notice. MTA reserves the right to disable or turn off 
public WiFi access at any time for any reason. 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 29



Resolution No. 2019-03 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-03 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY WIRELESS 

POLICY (POL-701). 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2014-36, Mason Transit Authority adopted an 

Informational Technology Wireless Policy establishing and defining the terms, conditions and 
rules regarding use of MTA’s wireless network by employees and the public; and 

 WHEREAS, since the adoption of that resolution, minor edits and clarifications in the 
policy will bring the policy current;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT PUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION AREA AUTHORITY BOARD that the revised Information Technology 
Wireless Policy (POL-701), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein, be established and 
adopted. 
 

Adopted this 19th day of March, 2019. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Chair     Wes Martin, Vice-Chair 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
  
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Sharon Trask, Authority Member    Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
____________________________ 
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 30



Resolution No. 2019-03 Page 2 of 2 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 31



 

 

Title: Information Technology Wireless Policy 
Number: 701 
Effective: January 1, 2015, Revised March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by:  Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-36; 
 Resolution No. 2019-03 

 

See Also:  FRM-701 Wireless Network Service Agreement/Terms of Use 
Page 1 of 1 

 
POL-701 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY WIRELESS NETWORK 

This policy establishes and defines the terms, conditions, and rules regarding use 
of Mason Transit Authority’s (MTA) wireless network (WiFi) by employees and the 
public. 

1. Types of WiFi Networks 
 

The Information Technology (IT) Team will design a wireless network infrastructure 
suitable to meet MTA’s business needs. The WiFi infrastructure may include any of 
the three types of subnetworks: Closed to the public, open to the public, and 
special purpose. 
 

2. Closed WiFi Networks 
 

Closed to the public WiFi networks are intended for business uses and 
applications, and only accessible by MTA employees for business purposes. Only 
devices approved by the Systems Administratorare permitted on closed WiFi 
networks. While connected to a closed WiFi network, all MTA policies, including 
the Information Technology Acceptable Use policy, is in effect. 
 

3. Special Purpose WiFi Networks 
 

Special purpose WiFi networks are networks established for a special purpose, 
such as testing functionality or for special events. Special purpose WiFi networks 
are limited to activities directly related to their special purpose and restricted by 
all applicable policies, including the Information Technology Acceptable Use policy. 
 

4. Public WiFi Networks 
 

Public WiFi networks are open to the public for internet access using MTA’s IT 
equipment and internet access. Members of the public accessing MTA’s public 
WiFi may be required to consent to MTA’s terms and conditions of use. Public 
users connect to the public WiFi with their own devices and at their own risk. MTA 
reserves the right to restrict access to individuals for violations of the terms and 
conditions of use without notice. MTA reserves the right to disable or turn off 
public WiFi access at any time for any reason. 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 32



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 2 – Actionable 
Subject:    Information Technology Acceptable Use Policy (POL-702) 
Prepared by:  Josh Jacobs, System Administrator 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 19, 2019 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
The purpose of the amended IT acceptable use policy is to update and strengthen the 
previously established and defined terms, conditions and rules regarding the use of 
MTA’s information technology resources by MTA employees. These updates are made to 
protect the integrity of the information technology resources. 
 
 
Legal Counsel and two members of the Board have reviewed and approved this form of 
the policy. 
 
 
Summary:  Amend existing IT Acceptable Use Policy (POL-702). 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-04 and the 
attached IT Acceptable Use Policy (POL-702).  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 33



 

 

Title: Information Technology Acceptable Use 
Number: 702 
Effective: January 1, 2015, REVISED March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Brian Jones, IT Support Technician 
Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board   
 Resolution No. 2014-37; 
 Resolution No. 2019-XX 

 

See Also:  MTA Employee Handbook 
Page 1 of 5 

 
POL-702 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE 

This policy defines the acceptable use of Mason Transit Authority’s (MTA) 
information technology (IT) resources. 

1. Authorized Users 
 
All MTA employees who are assigned a domain login are authorized to use MTA IT 
equipment. MTA employees are expected to keep their login credentials secure 
and to use their own login. Using another employee’s login is not permitted at any 
time for any reason. Sharing your password withto anyone, including to IT staff, is 
not permitted. Users will lock or log out of their computer any time they are away 
from their desk. Users are responsible for all actions done by with their account. 
All activity ies done on the network is monitored and recorded for security 
auditing purposes. Failure to maintain accountability of your domain login may 
result in disciplinary action, including but not limited to reimbursement to MTA for 
damages/loss of equipment and/or termination. 
 

2. Data 
 

All data and files originating by users of MTA’s IT equipment are considered 
property of MTA. Data originating from or received by users of MTA’s network is 
not considered private. MTA reserves the right to access, monitor, examine, copy, 
modify, delete, or share all data on IT resources without notice. 
 

3. Public Records 
 

All activities done on or data created with MTA equipment and resources, or while 
conducting MTA business, are subject to the Public Records aAct (RCW 42.56). It is 
the responsibility of the data’s creating user or team of the data to keep and 
maintain their data in accordance with RCW 40.14, Preservation and Destruction 
of Public Records. 

 
4. Authorized Devices 

 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 34



 

 

Title: Information Technology Acceptable Use 
Number: 702 
Effective: January 1, 2015, REVISED March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Brian Jones, IT Support Technician 
Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board   
 Resolution No. 2014-37; 
 Resolution No. 2019-XX 

 

See Also:  MTA Employee Handbook 
Page 2 of 5 

Only computers and devices approved by the Systems AdministratorFinance/IT 
Manager are authorized to be placed on the network. MTA staff is not permitted 
to move MTA computers or devices without the Systems AdministratorsFinance/IT 
Manager’s approval.  
 

 
5. Authorized Software 

 
Employees may not install software on MTA computers operated within the MTA 
network. A sSoftware requests must first be approved by the requester’s manager, 
then it is sent to the Systems AdministratorFinance/IT Manager in writing or via 
emailthrough the ticket system. Software must be selected from an approved 
software list, maintained by the Finance/IT TeamSystem Administrator, unless no 
selection on the list meets the requester’s need. The Systems Administrator 
Finance/IT Team will obtain and track the licenses, test new software for conflict 
and compatibility, and perform the installation. Installing unauthorized software 
may result in disciplinary action, including but not limited to reimbursement to 
MTA for damages/loss of equipment and/or termination. 
 

6. Password Security 
 

All domain user accounts will be subject to password security policies. 
 

• Passwords will expire 90 days after being created. 
• New passwords cannot contain a user’s name. 
• New passwords cannot be the same as the last 10 passwords. 
• Passwords must meet the following complexity requirements. 

o Must be at least 810 characters long. 
o Must meet 3 of the 4 conditions: 

 12 lowercase letters. 
 12 uppercase letters. 
 12 numbers. 
 12 symbols. 

• Domain accounts will be locked after 3 failed password entries within 15 
minutes. 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 35



 

 

Title: Information Technology Acceptable Use 
Number: 702 
Effective: January 1, 2015, REVISED March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Brian Jones, IT Support Technician 
Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board   
 Resolution No. 2014-37; 
 Resolution No. 2019-XX 

 

See Also:  MTA Employee Handbook 
Page 3 of 5 

• Locked out accounts will be locked for 515 minutes. 

Service accounts will be exempt from this password security policy.  Administrator 
account passwords will expire every 30 days. 

 

 

 

 

7. Provision of IT Equipment 
 

MTA, at its discretion, may provide IT resources in the form of equipment to 
employees for their use in fulfillment of their job responsibilities. In receiving the 
equipment, the employee acknowledges and accepts responsibility for the proper 
care and secure storage of the assigned equipment while it is in their possession. 
Failure to uphold these responsibilities may result in disciplinary action, including 
but not limited to reimbursement to MTA for damages/loss of equipment and/or 
termination. 
 

8. Common Area Computers 
 

Common area computers are designated for personal use while on breaks. 
Employees may check personal e-mail or browse personal websites. Except as 
explicitly provided herein, employee’s use of common area computers is subject to 
all MTA rules and policies including section 10. These computers are a privilege 
that MTA can revoke at any time for any reason. 
 

9. De minimis Use for IT Equipment 
 

De minimis, or infrequent or occasional use that results in no actual cost to the 
agency, is permitted on MTA desktopsIT equipment. De minimis use will be 
regulated by the employee’s immediate supervisor. At the supervisor’s discretion, 
de minimis computer use can be prohibited. Such prohibitions must be made in 
memorandum format and kept on record until changed or revoked. De minimis 
use must comply with all other sections of this policy and other applicable policies. 

 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 36



 

 

Title: Information Technology Acceptable Use 
Number: 702 
Effective: January 1, 2015, REVISED March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Brian Jones, IT Support Technician 
Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board   
 Resolution No. 2014-37; 
 Resolution No. 2019-XX 

 

See Also:  MTA Employee Handbook 
Page 4 of 5 

10. Acceptable Uses for IT equipment 
 

MTA’s IT equipment is to be used in the context of a professional business 
environment. MTA expects users to be respectful, lawful, and ethical in their use 
of IT equipment and resources. Any use of IT equipment or resources that violates 
MTA’s policies is strictly prohibited and may incur disciplinary action relative to the 
infraction including termination. 

 

The following are examples of prohibited conduct; this list is not all inclusive: 

• Transmitting, viewing, downloading, or posting or exchanging defamatory, 
obscene, offensive, pornography, discriminatory, harassing, or threatening 
content in documents or images. 

• Using MTA’s time and resources for personal financial gain. 
• Acquiring, using, or disclosing someone else's login credentials without 

appropriate authorization. 
• Violation of Copyright and/or Intellectual Property Rights laws. 
• Violation of State and Federal Privacy Laws such as the Health Insurance 

Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) or the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act 
(GLBA) pertaining to unauthorized use or release of Personally Identifiable 
Information (PII). 

• Failing to observe licensing agreements. 
• Installation of any software without the explicit authorization of MTA’s IT 

staffSystem Administrator. 
• Engaging in unauthorized transactions that may incur a cost to MTA or 

initiating unwanted Internet services and transmissions. 
• Participating or attempting to participate in the transmission, viewing 

downloading, posting or exchange of pornography or obscene materials. 
• Attempting to gain unauthorized access to the network or computer 

system of another organization or individual. 
• Transmitting or posting chain letters or solicitations. (Except on common 

area computers) 
• Using the Internet for political or religious causes or activities, or any sort 

of gambling. 
• Representing personal views as those of MTA. 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 37



 

 

Title: Information Technology Acceptable Use 
Number: 702 
Effective: January 1, 2015, REVISED March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Brian Jones, IT Support Technician 
Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board   
 Resolution No. 2014-37; 
 Resolution No. 2019-XX 

 

See Also:  MTA Employee Handbook 
Page 5 of 5 

• Sending anonymous e-mail messages. 
• Engaging in any other illegal, fraudulent, or malicious activities. 

 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 38



Resolution No. 2019-04 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-04 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE 

POLICY (POL-702). 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2014-37, Mason Transit Authority adopted an 

Informational Technology Acceptable Use Policy establishing and defining the terms, 
conditions and rules regarding use of MTA’s information technology resources by employees; 
and 

 WHEREAS, since the adoption of that resolution, additional provisions to protect the 
integrity of the information technology resources, as well as minor edits and clarifications in the 
policy will bring the policy current;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT PUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION AREA AUTHORITY BOARD that the revised Information Technology 
Acceptable Use Policy (POL-702), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein, be 
established and adopted. 
 

Adopted this 19th day of March, 2019. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Chair     Wes Martin, Vice-Chair 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
  
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Sharon Trask, Authority Member    Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
____________________________ 
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 39



Resolution No. 2019-04 Page 2 of 2 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 40



 

 

Title: Information Technology Acceptable Use 
Number: 702 
Effective: January 1, 2015, REVISED March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by:  Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board   
 Resolution No. 2014-37; 
 Resolution No. 2019-04 

 

See Also:  MTA Employee Handbook 
Page 1 of 4 

 
POL-702 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ACCEPTABLE USE 

This policy defines the acceptable use of Mason Transit Authority’s (MTA) 
information technology (IT) resources. 

1. Authorized Users 
 
All MTA employees who are assigned a domain login are authorized to use MTA IT 
equipment. MTA employees are expected to keep their login credentials secure 
and to use their own login. Using another employee’s login is not permitted at any 
time for any reason. Sharing your password with anyone, including IT staff, is not 
permitted. Users will lock or log out of their computer any time they are away 
from their desk. Users are responsible for all actions done with their account. All 
activity done on the network is monitored and recorded for security auditing 
purposes. Failure to maintain accountability of your domain login may result in 
disciplinary action, including but not limited to reimbursement to MTA for 
damages/loss of equipment and/or termination. 
 

2. Data 
 

All data and files originating by users of MTA’s IT equipment are considered 
property of MTA. Data originating from or received by users of MTA’s network is 
not considered private. MTA reserves the right to access, monitor, examine, copy, 
modify, delete, or share all data on IT resources without notice. 
 

3. Public Records 
 

All activities done on or data created with MTA equipment and resources, or while 
conducting MTA business, are subject to the Public Records Act (RCW 42.56). It is 
the responsibility of the creating user or team of the data to keep and maintain 
their data in accordance with RCW 40.14, Preservation and Destruction of Public 
Records. 

 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 41



 

 

Title: Information Technology Acceptable Use 
Number: 702 
Effective: January 1, 2015, REVISED March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by:  Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board   
 Resolution No. 2014-37; 
 Resolution No. 2019-04 

 

See Also:  MTA Employee Handbook 
Page 2 of 4 

4. Authorized Devices 
 

Only computers and devices approved by the Systems Administratorare authorized 
to be placed on the network. MTA staff is not permitted to move MTA computers 
or devices without theSystems Administrators’s approval.  
 

 
5. Authorized Software 

 
Employees may not install software on MTA computers operated within the MTA 
network. A software request must first be approved by the requester’s manager, 
then it is sent to the Systems Administratorthrough the ticket system. Software 
must be approved by the System Administrator. The Systems Administrator will 
obtain and track the licenses, test new software for conflict and compatibility, and 
perform the installation. Installing unauthorized software may result in disciplinary 
action, including but not limited to reimbursement to MTA for damages/loss of 
equipment and/or termination. 
 

6. Password Security 
 

All domain user accounts will be subject to password security policies. 
 

• Passwords will expire 90 days after being created. 
• New passwords cannot contain a user’s name. 
• New passwords cannot be the same as the last 10 passwords. 
• Passwords must meet the following complexity requirements. 

o Must be at least 10 characters long. 
o Must meet 3 of the 4 conditions: 

 1 lowercase letters. 
 1 uppercase letters. 
 1 numbers. 
 1 symbols. 

• Domain accounts will be locked after 3 failed password entries within 5 
minutes. 

• Locked out accounts will be locked for 5 minutes. 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 42



 

 

Title: Information Technology Acceptable Use 
Number: 702 
Effective: January 1, 2015, REVISED March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by:  Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board   
 Resolution No. 2014-37; 
 Resolution No. 2019-04 

 

See Also:  MTA Employee Handbook 
Page 3 of 4 

Service accounts will be exempt from this password security policy.  Administrator 
account passwords will expire every 30 days. 

 

7. Provision of IT Equipment 
 

MTA, at its discretion, may provide IT resources in the form of equipment to 
employees for their use in fulfillment of their job responsibilities. In receiving the 
equipment, the employee acknowledges and accepts responsibility for the proper 
care and secure storage of the assigned equipment while it is in their possession. 
Failure to uphold these responsibilities may result in disciplinary action, including 
but not limited to reimbursement to MTA for damages/loss of equipment and/or 
termination. 
 

8. Common Area Computers 
 

Common area computers are designated for personal use while on breaks. 
Employees may check personal e-mail or browse personal websites. Except as 
explicitly provided herein, employee’s use of common area computers is subject to 
all MTA rules and policies including section 10. These computers are a privilege 
that MTA can revoke at any time for any reason. 
 

9. De minimis Use for IT Equipment 
 

De minimis, or infrequent or occasional use that results in no actual cost to the 
agency, is permitted on MTAIT equipment. De minimis use will be regulated by the 
employee’s immediate supervisor. At the supervisor’s discretion, de minimis 
computer use can be prohibited. Such prohibitions must be made in memorandum 
format and kept on record until changed or revoked. De minimis use must comply 
with all other sections of this policy and other applicable policies. 

 
10. Acceptable Uses for IT equipment 

 

MTA’s IT equipment is to be used in the context of a professional business 
environment. MTA expects users to be respectful, lawful, and ethical in their use 
of IT equipment and resources. Any use of IT equipment or resources that violates 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 43



 

 

Title: Information Technology Acceptable Use 
Number: 702 
Effective: January 1, 2015, REVISED March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by:  Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board   
 Resolution No. 2014-37; 
 Resolution No. 2019-04 

 

See Also:  MTA Employee Handbook 
Page 4 of 4 

MTA’s policies is strictly prohibited and may incur disciplinary action relative to the 
infraction including termination. 

 

The following are examples of prohibited conduct; this list is not all inclusive: 

• Transmitting, viewing, downloading,  posting or exchanging defamatory, 
obscene, offensive, pornography, discriminatory, harassing, or threatening 
content in documents or images. 

• Using MTA’s time and resources for personal financial gain. 
• Acquiring, using, or disclosing someone else's login credentials. 
• Violation of Copyright and/or Intellectual Property Rights laws. 
• Violation of State and Federal Privacy Laws such as the Health Insurance 

Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) or the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act 
(GLBA) pertaining to unauthorized use or release of Personally Identifiable 
Information (PII). 

• Failing to observe licensing agreements. 
• Installation of any software without the explicit authorization of 

MTA’sSystem Administrator. 
• Engaging in unauthorized transactions that may incur a cost to MTA or 

initiating unwanted Internet services and transmissions. 
• Participating or attempting to participate in the transmission, viewing 

downloading, posting or exchange of pornography or obscene materials. 
• Attempting to gain unauthorized access to the network or computer 

system of another organization or individual. 
• Transmitting or posting chain letters or solicitations. (Except on common 

area computers) 
• Using the Internet for political or religious causes or activities, or any sort 

of gambling. 
• Representing personal views as those of MTA. 
• Sending anonymous e-mail messages. 
• Engaging in any other illegal, fraudulent, or malicious activities. 

 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 44



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 3 – Actionable 
Subject:    Information Technology Remote Access Policy (POL-704) 
Prepared by:  Josh Jacobs, System Administrator 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 19, 2019 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
MTA’s information technology infrastructure has been and is currently undergoing a 
number of upgrades and improvements, with more anticipated to be made in the 
coming year. The purpose of the proposed revised Information Technology Remote 
Access Policy is to make minor edits to bring the policy current regarding certain 
protocols relating to remote access users that shall be current employees of Mason 
Transit Authority. 
 
 
Legal Counsel and two members of the Board have reviewed and approved this form of 
the policy. 
 
 
Summary:  Amend existing Remote Access Policy (POL-704). 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board approve Resolution No. 2019-05 and the 
attached Information Technology Remote Access Policy (POL-704).  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard05 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 45



 

 

Title: Information Technology Remote Access 
Number: 704 
Effective: January 1, 2015; REVISED March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Brian Jones, IT Support Technician 
Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-39; 
 Resolution No. 2019-XX 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 1 of 1 

 
POL-704 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY REMOTE ACCESS 

This policy defines Mason Transit Authority’s (MTA) remote access to the network 
from the internet.  

1. Authorized Users for Remote Access 
 
Remote access users must be current employees of MTA and get approval from 
both their manager and the  Systems AdministratorFinance/IT manager. 
Irresponsible or lack of use for up to 90 days of remote access may result in loss of 
remote access privileges. Remote access users are not authorized to let others use 
their remote access username or password at any time for any reason. Either the 
remote access user’s manager or the Technical Support AnalystSystem 
Administrator Finance/IT Manager can revoke remote access rights at any time for 
any reason. by providing a written memo. 
 

2. Acceptable Use of Remote Access 

Remote access users will comply with this and all other MTA policies at all times 
while accessing MTA’s network. Users will also refrain from viewing restricted or 
prohibited websites while connected to MTA’s network. All activities done while 
remotely connected to MTA’s network will be tracked. by remote access 
username. 

3. Remote Access to Network Resources 
 

Remote access users will only access network resources that they are normally 
authorized to access. During non-office hours, IT reserves the right to take remote 
access services or other network services offline for scheduled or emergency 
maintenance and will provide advance notice to remote access users if able.  

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 46



Resolution No. 2019-05 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-05 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
ADOPTING A REVISED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY REMOTE ACCESS 

POLICY (POL-704). 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2014-39, Mason Transit Authority adopted an 

Informational Technology Remote Access Policy establishing and defining the protocols 
regarding remote access use of MTA’s current employees to the network from the internet; 
and 

 WHEREAS, since the adoption of that resolution, minor edits and clarifications in the 
policy will bring the policy current;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT PUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION AREA AUTHORITY BOARD that the revised Information Technology 
Remote Access Use Policy (POL-704), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein, be 
established and adopted. 
 

Adopted this 19th day of March, 2019. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Chair     Wes Martin, Vice-Chair 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
  
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Sharon Trask, Authority Member    Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
____________________________ 
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 47



Resolution No. 2019-05 Page 2 of 2 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 48



 

 

Title: Information Technology Remote Access 
Number: 704 
Effective: January 1, 2015; REVISED March 19, 2019 
Cancels: N/A 
Prepared by: Josh Jacobs, Systems Administrator 
Approved by: Authority Board  
 Resolution No. 2014-39; 
 Resolution No. 2019-05 

 

See Also:  N/A 
Page 1 of 1 

 
POL-704 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY REMOTE ACCESS 

This policy defines Mason Transit Authority’s (MTA) remote access to the network 
from the internet.  

1. Authorized Users for Remote Access 
 
Remote access users must be current employees of MTA and get approval from 
both their manager and the Systems Administrator. Irresponsible or lack of use for 
up to 90 days of remote access may result in loss of remote access privileges. 
Remote access users are not authorized to let others use their remote access at 
any time for any reason. Either the remote access user’s manager or the System 
Administrator can revoke remote access rights at any time for any reason.  
 

2. Acceptable Use of Remote Access 

Remote access users will comply with this and all other MTA policies at all times 
while accessing MTA’s network. Users will also refrain from viewing restricted or 
prohibited websites while connected to MTA’s network. All activities done while 
remotely connected to MTA’s network will be tracked.  

3. Remote Access to Network Resources 
 

Remote access users will only access network resources that they are normally 
authorized to access. During non-office hours, IT reserves the right to take remote 
access services or other network services offline for scheduled or emergency 
maintenance and will provide advance notice to remote access users if able.  

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 49



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 4 – Actionable 
Subject:    Scarsella Contract for Pear Orchard Park and Ride 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 19, 2019 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
On January 19, 2016, the Mason Transit Authority Board approved the acceptance of 
the WSDOT Agreement GCB2304 for Park & Ride Development and Improvements 
which included the Pear Orchard Park and Ride.   
 
An Invitation to Bid for the Pear Orchard Park & Ride was published beginning 
January 29, 2019 and bid documents were posted on MTA’s website and available 
through the Builders Exchange of Washington. The deadline for bid submittals was 
March 1, 2019 and the bids were publicly read at 11:00 a.m. on that day.  
 
Eight bids were received. Scarsella Bros. of Seattle, Washington submitted the lowest 
qualified bid of $630,005 to carry out the following: 
 

• Improvement to the Mason Transit Authority Pear Orchard Park and Ride 
Facility, which will include new pavement, pavement reconstruction, 
stormwater facilities, illumination, signing, striping, bus shelter and other 
work, all in accordance with the Contract Plans, Provisions and Standard 
Specifications. 

 
Legal Counsel has reviewed contract. 
 
 
Summary:  Award construction contract to Scarsella for Pear Orchard Park 
and Ride. 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
$ 126,001, 20% match. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve. 
 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 50



Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority (1) award the winning bid to Scarsella Bros. for 
the Pear Orchard Park and Ride in the amount of $630,005 and (2) approve Resolution 
No. 2019-06 authorizing the General Manager to sign and execute the contract between 
Scarscella Bros. and Mason Transit Authority.  
 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 51



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 52



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 53



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 54



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 55



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 56



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 57



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 58



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 59



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 60



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 61



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 62



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 63



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 64



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 65



Resolution No. 2019-06 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-06 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO AWARD THE WINNING BID 

AND SIGN A CONTRACT WITH SCARSELLA BROS. OF SEATTLE, 
WASHINGTON, FOR THE DEVELOPMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS TO THE 

PEAR ORCHARD PARK AND RIDE IN AN AMOUNT OF $630,005. 

 
WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority (“MTA”) Board by Resolution No. 2016-02 

adopted at its January 19, 2016 meeting, authorized the General Manager to sign the 
Amended WSDOT Agreement #GCB2304 (Regional Mobility Program-Park and Ride) which 
provided, in part, for Park and Ride development and improvements, which included the Pear 
Orchard Park and Ride; and 

 WHEREAS, an Invitation to Bid was published with the Daily Journal of Commerce, 
Shelton-Mason County Journal, Builders Exchange and the MTA website requesting bids be 
submitted to Mason Transit Authority no later than 11:00 a.m. on March 1, 2019, to carry out 
the improvement to the Mason Transit Authority Pear Orchard Park and Ride facility, which will 
include new pavement, pavement reconstruction, stormwater facilities, illumination, signing, 
striping, bus shelter and other work, all in accordance with the Contract Plans, Provisions and 
Standard specifications (the “Pear Orchard Improvements”), and; 

 WHEREAS, eight bids were timely submitted by March 1, 2019 and publicly opened at 
11:00 a.m.; and 

 WHEREAS, after staff reviewing and comparing all bids, the bid submitted by Scarsella 
Bros. is found to meet all the necessary specifications and requirements and at a lowest cost; 
and 

 WHEREAS, the bid submitted by Scarsella Bros. is $630,005, which is within the 
engineer’s estimate of $500,000 and $800,000; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that it awards the bid submitted by Scarsella Bros. of Seattle, Washington, as the 
winning bid for the Pear Orchard Improvements and hereby authorizes the General Manager to 
sign the contract between Scarsella Bros. and Mason Transit Authority. 
 

Adopted this 19th day of March, 2019. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Chair     Wes Martin, Vice-Chair 
 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 66



Resolution No. 2019-06 Page 2 of 2 
 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
  
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Sharon Trask, Authority Member    Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
____________________________ 
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 67



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 5 – Actionable 
Subject:    GCB3098 - Roof Replacement 
Prepared by:  Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facility Manager  
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 19, 2019 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
On December 18, 2018 Mason Transit Authority Board approved the acceptance of the 
WSDOT Agreement GCB3098 for the engineering and replacement of the roof on 
Buildings #3 and #4 at the Johns Prairie Facility. We budgeted $250,000 for this 
project. Bids were advertised in the Shelton-Mason County Journal, Seattle Daily Journal 
of Commerce and Builders Exchange. We received a total of 6 bids and CHG Building 
Systems Inc. of Renton WA submitted the lowest qualified bid of $165,997.  
 
Staff is requesting a Not to Exceed amount of $250,000 to allow for change orders or 
unforeseen damage that may be discovered once the project has started. 
 
Legal Counsel has reviewed contract. 
 
 
Summary:  Award construction contract to CHG Building Systems for the 
Roof Replacement on Buildings #3 and 4.  
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Not to Exceed $250,000. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Recommend Mason Transit Authority (1) award the winning bid to CHG Building 
Systems of Renton, Washington for roof replacement of Buildings #3 and #4 at the 
Johns Prairie facility in an amount not to exceed the budgeted amount of $250,000, and 
(2) approve Resolution No. 2019-07 authorizing the General Manager to sign the 
contract between CHG Building Systems Inc. and Mason Transit Authority.  
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 68



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 69



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 70



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 71



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 72



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 73



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 74



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 75



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 76



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 77



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 78



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 79



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 80



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 81



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 82



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 83



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 84



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 85



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 86



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 87



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 88



Resolution No. 2019-07 Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-07 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY BOARD 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO AWARD THE WINNING BID 

AND SIGN A CONTRACT WITH CHG BUILDING SYSTEMS OF RENTON, 
WASHINGTON, FOR THE ROOF REPLACEMENT OF BUILDINGS #3 AND 
#4 AT THE JOHNS PRAIRIE FACILITY IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

THE BUDGET AMOUNT OF $250,000. 

 
WHEREAS, the Mason Transit Authority (“MTA”) Board by Resolution No. 2018-21 

adopted at its December 18, 2018 meeting, approved the acceptance of the WSDOT 
Agreement GCB3098 for the engineering and replacement of the roof on Buildings #3 and #4 
at the Johns Prairie facility and authorized the General Manager to execute that Agreement; 
and 

 WHEREAS, a Request for Bids was published with the Daily Journal of Commerce, 
Shelton-Mason County Journal, Builders Exchange and the MTA website requesting bids be 
submitted to Mason Transit Authority no later than 5:00 p.m. on February 22, 2019, to carry 
out the repairs and replacements as specified therein and in accordance with WSDOT 
Agreement GCB3098, and; 

 WHEREAS, six bids were timely submitted; and 

 WHEREAS, after staff reviewing and comparing all bids, the bid submitted by CHG 
Building Systems Inc. is found to meet all the necessary specifications and requirements and at 
a lowest cost; and 

 WHEREAS, the bid submitted by CHG Building Systems Inc. is under the budgeted 
amount and makes it possible for replacement of the roofs for Buildings #3 and #4;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MASON TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
BOARD that it (1) awards the bid submitted by CHG Building Systems Inc., Renton, 
Washington, as the winning bid for the replacement of the Building #3 and #4 roofs of the 
Johns Prairie facility and (2) hereby authorizes the General Manager to sign the contract 
between CHG Building Systems Inc. and Mason Transit Authority. 
 

Adopted this 19th day of March, 2019. 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Randy Neatherlin, Chair     Wes Martin, Vice-Chair 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
John Campbell, Authority Member   Kevin Dorcy, Authority Member 
  

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 89



Resolution No. 2019-07 Page 2 of 2 
 

______________________________  ______________________________ 
Sharon Trask, Authority Member    Kevin Shutty, Authority Member 
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Deborah Petersen, Authority Member  Don Pogreba, Authority Member 
 
____________________________ 
Sandy Tarzwell, Authority Member 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:    _______    ______ 
          Danette Brannin, General Manager 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:        ______ 
    Robert W. Johnson, Legal Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        DATE:    ______ 
           Tracy Becht, Clerk of the Board 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 90



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   New Business – Item 6 – Actionable 
Subject:    Van Replacement for Vanpool Program 
Prepared by:  Marshall Krier, Maintenance and Facility Manager  
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 19, 2019 
 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes: 
 
Recently, two mini-vans in our vanpool were total losses due to accidents. Staff is 
requesting approval submit a grant application to replace the two wrecked mini-vans 
plus one more mini-van to replace a van beyond useful life. The two vans that are total 
losses were also beyond useful life.  
 
The vanpool program is stagnant but we would like to maintain the current level of 
groups by ensuring there are the proper vehicle sizes for the groups as they now have 
as well as vehicles that are in State of Good Repair (SGR). Staff will be evaluating 
whether we continue to replace vans as the vans reach the end of useful life. Staff is 
also looking at whether to reduce the number of vans placed in the vanpool program 
from 16 to 10. This would cover the current number of operating vanpools plus two 
spare vans to be used when a van comes in for service. The six vans that would be 
removed from vanpool would be divided between the community van program, van 
grant program, one to staff vehicle pool (to replace other Taurus) and/or auctioned off.   
 
Insurance recovery money for the two total losses will be used toward the match to 
purchase the vans. The remainder of the match will come from the Capital Project 
Reserves. 
 
 
Summary:  Authorize the General Manager to submit an application to 
WSDOT’s Vanpool Investment Program for three vans.  
 
 
 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Not to Exceed $35,000 match 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 91



Staff Recommendation: 
 
Approve the submittal of an application to the Washington State Department of 
Transportation Vanpool Investment Program for three replacement vans for the vanpool 
program. 
 
Motion for Consideration: 
 
Move that the Mason Transit Authority Board authorize the General Manager to finalize, 
approve, sign and submit the grant application to the WSDOT Vanpool Investment 
Program for three replacement vans. 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 92



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Presentation – Informational 
Subject:    Fares 
Prepared by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 19, 2019 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
Fares have not been increased since 2009. Staff would like to request the Operations 
and Maintenance Committee and the Citizen Advisor to the Board look at current fares 
and compare MTA fares to neighboring transits. Once a review has been completed, 
staff would like the Committee to make a recommendation to the Board on whether to 
increase fares and if so, recommend what the new fares should be. 
 
Please see attached information regarding MTA fares along with Intercity Transit, Kitsap 
Transit, Grays Harbor Transit and Jefferson Transit fares for comparison. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 93



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 94



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 95



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 96



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 97



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 98



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 99



March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 100



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational – Item 1 - Informational 
Subject:    Mason Transit Authority Regional Mobility Park and Ride 

Progress Update 
Prepared by:  Patrick Holm, SCJ Alliance 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 19, 2019 
 
Summary for Discussion Purposes:   
 
Project Management:  SCJ is continually managing the design team and subconsultant 
team. SCJ is tracking on-going project progress.  
 
Permitting: Building permit and water plans are in progress for the Belfair park and ride. 
Site permits (septic, grading, forest practices, SEPA Checklist) were submitted in 
October. SCJ is working with WSDOT to complete the Developer Permit for Pear 
Orchard, the final comments were included in the bid package. The Department of 
Ecology for NPDES issued coverage for the Pear Orchard Park and Ride on March 14th. 
 
Design Development: Site is design is complete. A-RT is finalizing the exterior of the 
building. Upon building shape and exterior completion, A-RT will make final push for 
permit plans. A-RT anticipates a completion date of early April. 
 
Belfair Park and Ride:  

• SCJ submitted site permit plans to Mason County in early October. 
• SCJ submitted preliminary roundabout design plans to WSDOT in October. 

o WSDOT gave verbal final approval March 12th. 
o SCJ will submit full design package to WSDOT next week. 

• PUD 3 and CenturyLink have provided schematic utility relocation designs. 
 
Construction Documents: Construction Document/Bid Packages are ready for Pickering 
Road and Cole Road.  
 
Advertisement: The Pear Orchard Park and Ride was advertised. Scarsella Brothers 
were the low bid at $630,005.  
 
Other progress: Parsons sent over their conceptual Shelton Matlock Park and Ride 
design. SCJ evaluated and maximized the stall count that will be feasible with available 
geotechnical/stormwater information. Parsons, MTA, and SCJ will advocate to WSDOT 
to incorporate the full design/construction into Parsons contract. 
 
Project Timeline: The critical path for design of the park and ride projects remains the 
Belfair park and ride. WSDOT’s extension of the final PFA approval has pushed the final 
roundabout submittal into March. WSDOT’s review time for the final design is three 
weeks. After this review, SCJ and MTA can evaluate WSDOT’s plan comments to asses 
risk of an early advertisement. The soonest the roundabout can be advertised will be 
mid to late April. 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 101



Mason Transit Authority Regular Board Meeting 
Agenda Item:   Informational Item 2– Informational 
Subject:    Management Reports 
Prepared by:  Tracy Becht, Executive Assistant 
Approved by:  Danette Brannin, General Manager 
Date:    March 19, 2019 
 
Summary for Informational Purposes: 
 
The monthly MTA Management Reports are attached for your information. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M
ason T

ransit A
uthority B

oard 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 102



  

  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
 

Submitted to MTA Authority Board March 19, 2019 
 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 103



 
 1 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|3
/1

9/
20

19
  

 

MTA MANAGEMENT REPORTS 
Submitted to MTA Authority Board March 19, 2019 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Below is a l ist of major activit ies for the month: 
• Park & Ride Development: Pear Orchard bid opening was on March 1. We received 8 bids with 

Scarsella Bros being the lowest qualified bid. Contract is in the board packet for approval. The bid 
package for the roundabout in North Mason should be in April if all goes well.  For additional 
information, see Park & Ride update under Informational Updates. 

• T-CC Parking Lot:  Finally heard back from the Department of Ecology’s Voluntary Cleanup Program 
regarding soil examples. More testing is required with possible cleanup before an opinion of no further 
action required is issued. I am working with the city and conservation district on a plan to proceed. A 
soil sampling plan needs to be prepared and submitted to DOE as well as an assessment and a letter 
stating that the cost of removing the building or other cleanup would outweigh the actual benefit 
received. I have also reached out to get quotes to have a consultant help with the sampling plan, letter 
and testing of any material removed. More to come…..  Also met with David Locke from Puget Sound 
Solar and PUD3 on electric vehicle chargers for the parking lot. 

• WSDOT: Participating in the Grant Process Advisory Committee (GPAC) for vehicle electrification and 
Consolidated Grant processes. Electrification of state purchased vehicles (including transit) is a 
mandate from the Governor. Transits are finding it hard to meet the mandate due to cost, 
infrastructure and technology. Electric buses do not work in all systems as the battery life is not 
sufficient to run an entire day without needing charged. Basically that means a transit needs to 
electric buses for every one diesel unless on-the-go charging is available.  

• WSTIP: Attended Monthly Executive Committee and Governance Meetings.  
• WSTA:  

• Participated in SMTA weekly legislative call. This is on-going throughout the session for 
updates.  

• Attended 1st Quarter Board Meeting. 
• Testified before the House and Senate Transportation Committees in opposition of I-976. 
• Introduced Mason County to the WSTA HR Roundtable that met for their quarterly meeting at 

Alderbrook. 
• City of Shelton: Attended the March 5 City Council meeting to present MTA’s two projects into  
• EDC:  

• Attended EDC Monthly Board Meeting (Feb and March) 
• Attended Annual EDC Luncheon  

• Chamber Activities: 
• Attended the monthly Shelton-Mason Chamber luncheon with the topic of Active Shooter. 
• Attended the North Mason Chamber Annual Gala. 

• PRTPO:  Attended PRTPO meeting. 
• Training:  As the drivers are doing, I did the Busing on the Lookout training. 
• Internal Activities: 

• Usual meetings with the Executive Team and Leadership Team. Miscellaneous meetings with 
staff. 

• Worked on Strategic Plan. 
• Two Employee Engagement Plan committee meetings. 
• Worked on Public Records Request. 
• Assisted Administrative Services Manager with annual review write-ups and review of job 

descriptions. Completed my direct report annual reviews. 
• Attended Service Review Committee meeting to discuss service change plans. 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 104



 

2 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
3/

19
/2

01
9 

 

• Marshall and I met with Hanover Signs for a demonstration of their product 
• Reviewed Operations Statistics for 2018 with staff to ensure reporting for the National Transit 

Database (NTD) is correct. 
• Reviewed Roof Replacement Proposals with Marshall. Selected a bidder with the lowest cost 

and qualified. 
• Met with Board Operations and Maintenance Committee to discuss Belfair and Johns Prairie 

facilities. 

Board Assistance, Awareness and Support: 
• I-976: I will be watching the outcome of I-976 has it has the potential of impacting funding for transit. 

This initiative would reset car tabs to $30 but have an impact to the multimodal fund where transit 
funding comes from as well as Sound Transit’s funding for light rail, transportation district benefit 
districts and State Patrol to name a few. 

• Fares: We have not raised fares other than the Summer Youth Pass since 2009. Would like to form a 
committee from the Operations and Maintenance standing board committee and the citizen advisor to 
the board.  

• Electrification: This is a hot topic currently for transit, especially rural transit where electric buses do 
not fit well into the system. Technology is improving but there are still challenges such as the amount 
of time a battery charge actually lasts. There are several transits testing the waters of electrifying their 
fleet and we are in the watching stage.  

 

TEAM UPDATES 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER – LeeAnn McNulty 
• HR Support  

o Continuing to work on a refreshed/compliant employee handbook.   
o Reviewed the job descriptions of Finance staff, aligned job descriptions with duties currently 

performed.  This was made easier by using the WSTA Salary Repository, a database of collective job 
descriptions, and salary data for all participating transit agencies. 

o Reviewed performance reviews for Operations Supervisors. 
o Participate with the Employee Engagement Committee. 

• Recruiting 
o We have made offers to 3 drivers to begin our March 20th class. 
o We filled our Technical Support Intern position with a wonderful student Tyler who has received his AA 

in Computer Network Administration and now working on a 4-year degree. 
• Finance  

o Working to finalize the 2018 National Transit Data (NTD) report. 
o Beginning preparation of the Annual Report now that we have received final 2018 input. 

• Training. 
o The Workplace Fatigue Conference presented by the National Safety Council (NSC) was very 

informative.  NSC in coordination Brigham Health developed a Fatigue Cost Calculator that estimates 
the annual cost of fatigue in the workplace. By inputting MTA’s head count, region of the country, and 
industry type, the calculator produced an estimated cost of $112,529 for our fatigued workers.  The 
cost comes from absenteeism, decreased productivity, and healthcare costs.  Focus on educating 
trainee drivers on the importance of proper rest is part of their new hire curriculum; supervisors and 
dispatchers watch to ensure that staff is fit for duty daily. 

o Attended Substance Abuse Management Training for Rural Transit Providers webinar with our         two 
backup Designated Employee Representatives (DER). 

o Attended WSTA HR Committee meeting. Topics to be covered:  New ruling on third party harassment, a 
fit for duty discussion with WSTIP’s Risk Manager, and update from Summit Law plus a review of the 
Salary Repository initiative.   

 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 105



 
 3 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|3
/1

9/
20

19
  

MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES – Marshall Krier 

Maintenance Shop and Facilities 
• Congratulations: I would like to congratulate Brenton Schnitzer for completion of the ASE Transit Bus 

test series and becoming a Master Transit Bus Technician. Also, Brenton has been promoted from 
Acting Lead Mechanic to Lead Mechanic!! 

• JP HVAC: We have completed repairs to the Johns Prairie Building #2 HVAC system that was damaged 
in the recent snow event.  

• Radich Building: The recent snow event raised concerns about the roof condition of the Radich 
Building.  We have scheduled an engineer from Wetherholt and Associates to perform a site visit to 
visually review current roof conditions and prepare a report with recommendations for repair or 
replacement.  

• Staff Vehicle: We are anticipating our first of 3 staff vehicles to arrive by the end of March. The 
Colorado truck will replace our 1995 Chevrolet S-10 and primarily be used for servicing our bus stops. 

• Vehicle Testing: Schetky Northwest Bus Sales will have a mini bus available for us the first part of 
April. It is very similar to the Starlite that was tested in February. 

 
T-CC Facility user traffic report: 
 
All numbers for the T-CC were down for February due to the 2 weeks of inclement weather. Multiple events, 
programs, and classes were cancelled because of hazardous road conditions. 

• Gym: Gym use for February came in at 460 people this month, which included our weekly pickle ball 
program, Choice P.E., Special Olympics basketball, South Mason Youth Soccer and Sanderson Field 
R.C. Flyers activities. 

• Conference Room: Conference room use for February was at 92 people. Those that braved the 
weather and use the conference room to attend event rentals, the MTA board meeting, MTA CPR 
training, monthly tenant gatherings, and a new non-profit job club sponsored by Arc of the Peninsulas. 

• Overall: 
February proved to be challenge to keep clear of snow and ice during the bad weather. Big thanks to 
Mike Morrison, Brenton Schnitzer and Marshall Krier for going the extra mile by coming in early, 
modifying shifts, and just putting in a whole lot of effort! Much appreciated. 
 
The T-CC bus lanes and sidewalks were shoveled and clean at least once a day even on the non-
service days. We averted a potentially major maintenance issue at the United Way building due to the 
extreme snow load that accumulated quickly on the flat roof. Thanks to Ascend Roofing for providing 
an emergency crew within an hour to shovel the huge amount of snow off of the flat roof. 
 
We experienced several power spikes during the snow event that reset certain systems and damaged 
a circuit board on our alarm system. All electronic issues have been repaired. Our stock of ice melt 
took a huge hit as we did not project for the record amounts of snow and freezing temperatures in 
February. We will need to replenish our snow and ice-melt before next fall. 
Even though we faced multiple unforeseen challenges in February, we are pleased that there were not 
any major damages or injuries of any type at the T-CC. We didn’t have any reported slip-and-falls and 
other than sore backs, everyone made it through the snowy weather in good health. We are looking 
forward to spring. 

 
T-CC Building 

• Shoveled bus lanes multiple times daily during snow weeks. 
• De-iced bus lanes and passenger sidewalks daily during snow weeks. 
• Responded to sagging roof at United Way building. Thank you Ascend Roofing for quick response. 
• Provided route information to passengers during snow weeks 
• Completed monthly fire extinguisher / sprinkler inspections. 
• Completed Quarterly Phase I and Phase II elevator testing in Leeds Building. 
• Fixed vandalized sink in passenger bathrooms. 
• Supported John M. with OPs issues. 
• Worked with the City of Shelton on summer program schedule. 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 106



 

4 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

| 
3/

19
/2

01
9 

 

• All scheduled programs limited this month due to snow. 
• Drained T-CC drum drips.  
• CHOICE PE classes limited this month due to snow days. 
• Received and submitted quotes for acoustical panels and installation at the T-CC. 
• Hosted the Olympus Rally Association’s Awards Ceremony. 
• Taylor United is continuing kitchen use. 
• Welcoming two new non-profit organizations for conference room and gym area for programs. 
• MTA CPR training in conference room. 
• Continuing to work with Josh on Double Map project. 
• Hosted WSDOT Executive meeting in conference room. 
• Scheduled annual fire alarm and sprinkler system testing for March 20 at the T-CC. 

OPERATIONS – Mike Ringgenberg 
• Bus Shelter: The City of Shelton will be pouring concrete for a bus stop shelter at Fairmont Cove 

apartments as soon as the weather breaks. 
• Doublemap:  The CEO from Doublemap and his installation guru spent two days at MTA fixing some of 

the challenges. They have committed to having the software challenges fixed in the next 60 days!!   
• Inclement Weather Plan: This plan was used extensively during the 2019 February Snowmagedden. 

We also did an excellent job of coordinating with our neighboring transit agencies to ensue connecting 
routes were coordinated.  We also discovered some challenges that we can improve our processes for 
the 2020 Inclement Weather Plan. 

• MTA Drivers Manual: Matt C is finishing up on his first draft review of the Drivers Manual before the 
Ops team starts the second review. 

• New Drivers Class:  Lisa conducted a “Life as a Driver” briefing with three prospective driver 
candidates on February 16. We interviewed 7 driver candidates and hired 3 individuals who will start 
in our new driver class on March 20, 2019 class.  New team members will be:  Nathan Zimbeck, 
Mark Lewis, and Cody Phillips. 

• Outreach Presentations: In February, Kathy conducted outreach events at North Mason High School 
for three classes and at a North Mason Early Learning Family resource fair. Kathy attended the 
following meetings:  Moving Mason Forward; Olympic College about our mini bus project; 2 TMBHO 
meetings and 4 Service Review Committee meetings. Kathy also attended the North Mason Chamber 
Gala and met with InterCity Transit to discuss their future service changes. 

• Road Construction in Shelton: Road construction has started back up in Shelton. Operations staff is in 
constant contact with the City to ensure we are aware of upcoming road changes.  Rider alerts and 
Tweets have been going out to our customers as soon as we have new information to share. 

• Service Review Committee: SRC is meeting weekly to prepare for the June 3 shake up and to prepare 
for the Oct 7 shake up.  

• Test Drive: MTA test drove a 2019 StarCraft Starlite Transit van for a week in February.  Drivers 
provided both positive and negative insights about this vehicle.  Thanks to everyone who drove it or 
provided feedback!! 

• Training: Lisa trained 17 individuals in PASS training.  Trina trained 15 individuals in CPR/AED/FA 
training and completed 3 Defensive Driver evaluations for vanpool. 

• Vanpool: Usage rate for February 2018 was 50%; 8 of 16 vans were in use.   

  

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 107



 
 5 

M
TA

 M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

RE
PO

RT
S 

|3
/1

9/
20

19
  

2019 WORK ITEMS UPDATE 
 

 

 

 

 

SEE ATTACHED SPREADSHEETS 

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 108



N
:\

Ad
m

in
\A

dm
in

 S
ha

re
d\

M
TA

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
Bo

ar
d 

AR
CH

IV
AL

\2
01

9 
Au

th
or

ity
 B

oa
rd

\2
01

9 
Bo

ar
d 

M
ee

tin
gs

\M
ar

 1
9 

'1
9 

Bo
ar

d 
Pa

ck
et

\W
or

kp
la

n 
U

pd
at

e 
20

19

20
19

 W
or

k 
Ite

m
s

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

s 
of

 3
/1

5/
19

1s
t Q

ua
rt

er
2n

d 
Q

ua
rt

er
3r

d 
Q

ua
rt

er
4t

h 
Q

ua
rt

er

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 A

pp
ro

ve
d

∆

Em
pl

oy
ee

 H
an

db
oo

k 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
∆

Cr
ea

te
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ol
ic

y 
M

an
ua

l
∆

KP
I r

ep
or

tin
g 

- d
as

hb
oa

rd
 to

 b
oa

rd
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 1
st

 q
ua

rt
er

∆
∆

De
ve

lo
p 

ro
ut

e 
de

vi
at

io
n,

 st
ro

lle
r, 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
im

al
, n

o-
sh

ow
 p

ol
ic

ie
s f

or
 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
∆

∆
∆

De
ve

lo
p 

a 
lig

ht
 d

ut
y 

an
d 

po
sit

io
n 

tr
an

sit
io

n 
po

lic
ie

s f
or

 H
R

X
∆

De
ve

lo
p 

an
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t P

la
n 

∆
∆

∆

W
ag

e 
an

al
ys

is
∆

∆

U
ni

on
 N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
∆

∆

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 d

riv
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

∆
∆

∆
∆

Pr
ep

ar
e 

a 
W

el
co

m
e 

pa
ck

ag
e 

fo
r n

ew
 D

AR
 ri

de
rs

∆
∆

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 ri

de
rs

hi
p 

an
al

ys
is 

an
d 

ou
tr

ea
ch

 in
iti

tiv
e

∆
∆

∆
∆

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

on
ve

rs
at

io
ns

∆
∆

Pu
bl

ic
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 c

ha
ng

es
∆

∆
∆

∆

Se
rv

ic
e 

ch
an

ge
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

pl
an

∆
∆

Bu
s b

ui
ld

s f
or

 c
oa

ch
es

 a
nd

 c
ut

aw
ay

s
∆

∆

Ro
of

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

n 
Bu

ild
in

g 
3 

an
d 

4
∆

∆

Re
co

rd
s M

an
ag

em
en

t -
 N

et
w

or
k 

re
or

ga
ni

za
tio

n
∆

∆
∆

∆

IT
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
om

pu
te

r r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
∆

∆

Pa
rk

 &
 R

id
e 

pr
oj

ec
t (

th
ro

ug
h 

20
23

)
∆

∆
∆

∆

T-
CC

 p
ar

ki
ng

 lo
t c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

∆
∆

∆

Da
sh

bo
ar

d 
la

yo
ut

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

Re
se

ar
ch

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
e 

An
im

al
 p

ol
ic

ie
s a

nd
 n

ew
 la

w
 - 

U
pd

at
e:

 W
ai

tin
g 

fo
r W

SD
O

T 
fo

r 
di

re
ct

io
n.

Pr
og

re
ss

Co
nt

in
ue

d 
w

or
k.

Co
nt

in
ue

d 
w

or
k.

Se
e 

Pa
rk

 &
 R

id
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
na

l p
ag

e 
fo

r u
pd

at
e.

Se
e 

Ge
ne

ra
l M

an
ag

er
's 

re
po

rt
 fo

r u
np

da
te

.

Bi
ds

 w
er

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ac
to

r w
ith

 lo
w

es
t b

id
 w

as
 C

HG
 fr

om
 R

en
to

n.
 

N
ee

ds
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
ss

es
se

d,
 li

ce
ns

in
g 

up
da

te
d 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
or

de
re

d.
 F

un
ds

 
st

ill
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r a

dd
ito

na
l p

ur
ch

as
es

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e.

 Jo
sh

 is
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
lis

t.

IT
 is

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

a 
pr

oc
es

s f
or

 m
ov

in
g 

ol
d 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
 re

co
rd

s a
s t

he
 fi

rs
t s

te
p.

PA
SS

 a
nd

 F
irs

t A
id

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s f

or
 1

st
 Q

ua
rt

er
. D

riv
er

s w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

"B
us

in
g 

on
 

th
e 

Lo
ok

ou
t"

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 to

 h
el

p 
in

 a
w

ar
en

es
s o

f s
ex

 tr
af

fic
ki

ng
.

Se
rv

ic
e 

Re
vi

ew
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 is
 re

vi
ew

in
g 

N
el

so
n/

N
yg

aa
rd

 su
gg

es
tio

ns
. A

 ti
m

el
in

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d.

Li
gh

t D
ut

y 
Po

lic
y 

w
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. T

he
 p

ol
ic

y 
fo

r t
ra

ns
iti

on
in

g 
to

 a
 n

ew
 p

os
iti

on
 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 h

an
db

oo
k 

re
vi

sio
n.

A 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
fo

rm
ed

 to
 c

re
at

e 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 e

ng
ag

m
en

t p
la

n.
 T

he
 c

om
m

itt
ee

 
co

ns
ist

s o
f d

riv
in

g 
an

d 
ad

m
in

 st
af

f -
 U

PD
AT

E:
 C

on
tin

ue
d 

m
ee

tin
gs

.

Ha
ve

 b
eg

un
 w

or
k 

on
 th

is.
 C

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

w
ag

e 
an

al
ys

is 
fo

r f
in

an
ce

 p
os

iti
on

s.

Ka
th

y 
ha

s b
ee

n 
ou

t t
al

ki
ng

 w
ith

 la
rg

e 
em

pl
oy

er
s t

o 
as

sis
t w

ith
 a

lig
ni

ng
 m

or
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

af
te

rn
oo

n 
co

m
m

ut
er

 ti
m

es
. S

he
 is

 a
lso

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 In
te

rc
ity

 a
nd

 K
its

ap
 T

ra
ns

its
.

W
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

an
al

ys
is.

March 19, 2019 Reg Board Mtg 109


	ADP4977.tmp
	Mason Transit Authority
	Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
	February 19, 2019
	NEW BUSINESS
	UPCOMING MEETINGS

	ADP567.tmp
	GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
	Below is a list of major activities for the month:
	Board Assistance, Awareness and Support:

	TEAM UPDATES
	2019 WORK ITEMS UPDATE

	Workplan Update 2019.pdf
	2019




